
Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,
Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP

DYDD LLUN, 12 RHAGFYR 2016

AT:  YR AELOD O’R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS  ADFYWIO A
HAMDDEN

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O’R 
CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL 
DROS ADFYWIO A HAMDDEN A GYNHELIR YN YSTAFELL 72A, NEUADD 
Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN, AM 3.30 PM, DYDD LLUN, 19EG RHAGFYR, 2016 
ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD 
YNGHLWM

Mark James DYB

PRIF WEITHREDWR

 AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA
Swyddog Democrataidd: Martin S. Davies
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224059
E-bost: MSDavies@sirgar.gov.uk
Cyf: AD016-001

Pecyn Dogfennau





A G E N D A  

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.

2. CYMERADWYO A LLOFNODI HYSBYSIAD PENDERFYNIAD Y 
CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR YR 11EG TACHWEDD 2016.

3 - 4

3. CRONFA DATBLYGU EIDDO SAFLE CYFLOGAETH 
STRATEGOL DWYRAIN CROSS HANDS.

5 - 32

4. CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R GRONFA GRANT GANLYNOL: 
CRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR.

33 - 42

5. WEDI YSTYRIED HOLL AMGYLCHIADAU'R ACHOS AC WEDI 
CYNNAL PRAWF BUDD Y CYHOEDD GALL YR AELOD O'R 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL FARNU NAD YW'R EITEMAU 
GANLYNOL I'W CHYHOEDDI AM EU BOD YN CYNNWYS 
GWYBODAETH EITHRIEDIG FEL Y'I DIFFINNIR YM 
MHARAGRAFF 14 O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 12A I DDEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I NEWIDIWYD GAN 
ORCHYMYN LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT 
WYBODAETH) (AMRYWIO) (CYMRU) 2007.

6. CRONFA MENTRAU GWLEDIG SIR GAERFYRDDIN- 
DEINTYDDFA EMLYN.

43 - 52

7. CRONFA MENTRAU GWLEDIG SIR GAERFYRDDIN- TE GER Y 
MÔR.

53 - 62



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU AELOD O'R BWRDD 
GWEITHREDOL DROS ADFYWIO A HAMDDEN

DYDD GWENER, 11 TACHWEDD 2016

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd M. Gravell (Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol).

Roedd y swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol:
R. Harding, Swyddog Datblygu Busnes
C Jones, Cynorthwyydd Rhaglen Adfywio Ffisegol
J Pritchard, Swyddog Adfywio Cymunedol;
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd.

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.

Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau o fuddiant personol.

2. CYMERADWYO A LLOFNODI HYSBYSIAD PENDERFYNIAD Y CYFARFOD A 
GYNHALIWYD AR YR 7FED HYDREF 2016.

PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi bod Cofnod Penderfyniadau'r cyfarfod oedd wedi'i 
gynnal ar 7 Hydref, 2016 yn gofnod cywir.

3. CRONFA DATBLYGU ADFYWIO RHYDAMAN.

Ystyriodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol adroddiad yn cynnwys manylion 
ynghylch meini prawf a'r gweithdrefnau ar gyfer Cronfa Datblygu Adfywio 
Rhydaman. Nodau ac amcanion y Gronfa oedd galluogi a chymell gwaith 
adnewyddu tai a phrosiectau adeiladau newydd yn Rhydaman. Byddai'r cynllun yn 
cynorthwyo i fynd i'r afael â'r dirywiad mewn safleoedd ac eiddo heb eu 
meddiannu drwy ddefnydd uniongyrchol gan Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin a/neu'r sector 
preifat.

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo'r meini prawf cymhwyso a'r gweithdrefnau 
arfaethedig er mwyn sefydlu Cronfa Datblygu Adfywio Rhydaman.

4. CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R GRONFA GRANT GANLYNOL: GRANT 
CRONFA'R DEGWM A CRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR.

PENDERFYNWYD

4.1 cymeradwyo'r ceisiadau canlynol am gymorth o Gronfa'r Degwm yn 
amodol ar y telerau a'r amodau arferol ac ar y rhai a bennwyd yn yr 
adroddiad:-

Ymgeisydd                                                                                    Dyfarniad

Capel Ebeneser y Bedyddwyr Cymraeg                                          £3,000.00
Neuadd y Farchnad – Llanboidy                                                          £3,000.00

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  2



4.2 cymeradwyo'r ceisiadau canlynol am gymorth o'r Gronfa Cyllid a 
Dargedir yn amodol ar y telerau a'r amodau arferol ac ar y rhai a bennwyd yn 
yr adroddiad:-

Ymgeisydd                                                                                      Dyfarniad
Ymddiriedolaeth Sied Nwyddau Llanelli                                   £12,000.00
Canolfan Gymunedol Ystradowen                                         £12,654.00

5. ADRODDIADAU NAD YDYNT I'W CYHOEDDI

PENDERFYNWYD yn unol â Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, fel y'i diwygiwyd 
gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) 
(Cymru) 2007, na fyddai’r eitemau canlynol yn cael eu cyhoeddi, gan fod yr 
adroddiadau'n cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffiniwyd ym 
Mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A i’r Ddeddf.

6. CRONFA MENTER GLWEDIG SIR GAERFYRDDIN.

Ar ôl cynnal y prawf budd y cyhoedd PENDERFYNWYD, yn unol â'r Ddeddf y 
cyfeiriwyd ati yng nghofnod rhif 2 uchod, na fyddai yn cynnwys yr adroddiad 
yn cael ei gyhoeddi gan ei fod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig am 
faterion ariannol neu fusnes rhywun penodol (gan gynnwys yr Awdurdod 
oedd yn meddu ar y wybodaeth honno) (Paragraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A 
i'r Ddeddf).

Yr oedd y prawf budd y cyhoedd o ran y mater hwn yn ymwneud â'r ffaith 
fod yr adroddiad yn cynnwys gwybodaeth fanwl am faterion a dyheadau 
busnes ac ariannol yr ymgeiswyr. Yn yr achos hwn, yr oedd y budd i'r 
cyhoedd o ran cadw cyfrinachedd yn drech na'r budd i'r cyhoedd o ran 
tryloywder ac atebolrwydd, gan y byddai datgelu'r wybodaeth yn debygol o 
niweidio'r ymgeiswyr ar hyn o bryd. 

Ystyriodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol gais gan Sauro Architect Design am 
gymorth gan Gronfa Mentrau Gwledig Sir Gaerfyrddin tuag at y costau o 
adnewyddu 9 Teras Elliston, Caerfyrddin er mwyn ei ddefnyddio unwaith eto. 

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo'r cais canlynol am gymorth o'r Gronfa 
Mentrau Gwledig Sir Gaerfyrddin yn amodol ar y telerau a'r amodau arferol 
ac ar y rhai a bennwyd yn yr adroddiad:-

Yr Ymgeisydd/Eiddo                                                     Y Dyfarniad

Sauro Architects Designs /9 Teras Elliston, Caerfyrddin         £60,000.00

_______________________________ __________________
AELOD O’R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DYDDIAD

Tudalen 6



YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
19 Rhagfyr 2016

Yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol: Y Portffolio:
Y Cyng. Meryl Gravell Adfywio a Hamdden

CRONFA DATBLYGU EIDDO SAFLE CYFLOGAETH STRATEGOL DWYRAIN CROSS 
HANDS

Y Pwrpas: Darparu Cronfa Datblygu Eiddo i annog y sector preifat i adeiladu lle cyflogaeth ar 
Safle Cyflogaeth Strategol Dwyrain Cross Hands.

 

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen:
Cymeradwyo'r cynllun a’r canllawiau arfaethedig ar gyfer Cronfa Datblygu Eiddo Safle 
Cyflogaeth Strategol Dwyrain Cross Hands
Y Rhesymau: 

Creu cymhelliant i annog y sector preifat i fuddsoddi yn Safle Cyflogaeth Strategol 
Dwyrain Cross Hands trwy lenwi’r bwlch ariannu rhwng cost y prosiect a gwerth 
prosiectau lleoedd cyflogaeth ar ôl eu cwblhau.

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Wendy Walters

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Cath Jones

Swydd: Dirprwy Prif Weithredwr

Swydd : Cydlynydd  Rhaglen, 
AmanGwendraeth

Rhif Ffôn: 01267 224112

Cyfeiriad E-bost:

WSWalters@sirgar.gov.uk

Rhif Ffôn: 01269 590241

Cyfeiriad E-bost: 
CJones@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 7

Eitem Rhif  3

mailto:CJones@sirgar.gov.uk


Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): None

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): N/A

DECISION MADE:

Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______
                                                                   EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER 

The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance 
at the meeting
Recommendation of Officer 
adopted

YES / NO

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified:

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted:

Tudalen 8



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER REGENERATION & LEISURE

19TH of DECEMBER 2016

CROSS HANDS EAST STRATEGIC EMPLOYMENT SITE 
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT FUND

Background 
The Cross Hands East Strategic Employment Site is one of the five prominent developments in 
the Cross Hands Growth Zone and is one of the key projects for the County over the coming 
years as identified in “The Strategic Regeneration Plan for Carmarthenshire 2015-2030”. The site 
has recently been prepared for development through capital investment and is identified as a 
strategic site within the Swansea Bay City Region. 

In order to attract investment by the private sector it is proposed to offer a site specific £1 million 
Property Development Fund to incentivise investment and plot take up. It is intended that the fund 
targets investment in specific sectors which includes:

 Energy and Environment
 Creative
 Advanced  Manufacturing
 Financial & Professional 
 Agri-Food Technology

Projects outside these sectors will only be considered in exceptional circumstances.

The level of funding required will be established by a development appraisal, and will reflect the 
difference between the anticipated capital cost of the scheme and the anticipated completed 
market value of the premises. The Grant is to be operated with state aid cover under the Welsh 
Local Government Property Development Grant Scheme. State Aid reference SA.46422.
Levels of funding will be restricted to the State Aid thresholds. 

Proposed Application & Prioritisation Process
 It is proposed that stage one applications will be invited in December 2016 for submission by 
February 28th 2017. These would be considered by a project panel on a “challenge” principle 
basis. Project panel to consider applications and invite applications to proceed to detailed 
application stage with priority being given to projects that will provide tangible benefits to the local 
economy  in terms of :-

 potential jobs accommodated/ created
 proposed end tenant’s use and quality of proposed jobs to be created
 value for money
 floor area of new premises to be developed
 impact on Swansea Bay City Region & Transformational Strategy Objectives
 cross cutting issues addressed by the project including how the project encourages and 

promotes the development of the welsh language and its role within the economy

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Proposed guidelines attached

Tudalen 9



IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which 
have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail 
below, there are no other implications associated 
with this report :

Signed:   Wendy Walters                                                             
Assistant Chief Executive  
Policy and Crime & Disorder Legal Finan

ce 
ICT Risk 

Manage
ment 
Issues 

Organis
ational 
Develop
ment 

Physi
cal 
Asset
s  

YES YES YES NO YES NO YES 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities
All applicants will be required to provide a copy of 
their Welsh Language Policy as part of the 
application process. 
All signage displayed on or in a building supported 
under the fund will need to be displayed bi-
lingually. 
2. Legal  
CCC legal team have considered the ability of the 
authority to award grant with state aid cover under 
the Welsh Local Government Capital Investment 
Aid and Employment Aid Scheme and have 
concluded that exemption to state aid applies. The 
terms and conditions of grant & legal agreements 
that will be issued to applicants is being 
considered by CCC legal. As a condition of grant 
Legal charges will need to be registered with the 
land registry on all buildings that are supported 
under the programme .Legal provisions will need 
to be in place including terms and conditions for 
use with legal charge/restrictions required. The 
Economic Development team will liaise with the 
Legal Department in order to arrange details 
accordingly. 
 

Tudalen 10



3. Finance  
 The funding required for the scheme is currently identified in the Capital Programme. 
 There are revenue implications such as costs for initial marketing of the schemes and 

registering legal charges. These costs will need to be picked up within Economic 
Developments Current Revenue Budget 

 In line with current policy, the finance department will need to undertake a financial assessment 
of proposed applicants and tendering contractors and list their recommendations in a report for 
the decision making panel. 

 The Economic Development team will work with the Finance department to formalise and 
support the processes required to implement this scheme. Clear accounting arrangements will 
be formed 

4. Risk Management Issues
Proposed risk mitigation measures will need to be introduced which will reduce the level of risk to a 
satisfactory level. Such measures would include – 

 Thorough investigation of each third party applicant 
 Retrospective payments
 Ensuring appropriate clawback clauses within guidelines
 Regularly monitoring the progress of works 

5. Physical Assets
Cross Hands East Strategic Employment Site is owned by the County Council and any land 
agreements with the private sector will be worked up jointly with corporate property. 

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:   Wendy Walters                                                             Assistant Chief Executive                               

1. Scrutiny Committee N/A
2.Local Member(s)  N/A
3.Community / Town Council N/A
4.Relevant Partners  N/A
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THERE ARE NONE  

Tudalen 11



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Updated Oct 2016

                                         

Cross Hands East Strategic 
Employment Site – Property 

Development Assistance

Guidelines For Applicants

CONTENTS

1. Introduction

2. Eligibility

3. Funding Levels

4. State Aid

5. Targeted  Area

6. Process

7. Applications

8. Information Required

9. Security/Clawback/Repayment

10. Outputs

11. Payment

Tudalen 13



2

12. Additionality

13. Community Benefits – Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 

14. Procurement

15. Publicity Requirements

16. Design & Supervision

17. Cross Cutting Themes

17.2 Welsh Language

18. Golden Rules

19. Contact Details

ANNEXES
ANNEX 1 Example development appraisal
ANNEX 2 Definition of outputs
ANNEX 3 Purchasing goods, services, consultancy, research or works.
ANNEX 4 Publicity requirements

Tudalen 14



3

1. Introduction

The scheme provides financial assistance for the construction of buildings for commercial 
use with the primary aim of creating capacity for employment on the Cross Hands East 
Strategic Employment Site (CHESES). 

The programme is available for both developer led proposals and owner occupiers who wish 
to construct new premises to create high quality job capacity within 5 targeted business 
sectors as follows :-

 Energy and Environment

 Creative

 Advanced manufacturing

 Financial & Professional

 Agri-Food Technology

Funding for this programme is from Carmarthenshire County Council’s Capital Programme.  
Priority will be given to applications that will provide tangible benefits in terms of the quality 
as well as the quantity of jobs accommodated, the quality of the business space created, the 
area of floor space created, the number of SME’s accommodated, the impact of the 
development on the Welsh Language, the number of enterprises adopting or improving 
equality strategies & monitoring systems and the impact of the development on the 
environment. Projects that create jobs will be deemed more favourable.

The aim of the programme is to support applicants that require financial aid for their 
projects to proceed, i.e. if funding were not forthcoming the project would not proceed.

The funding is available to meet the financial gap between the construction costs and the 
completed market value of the property.  The incentive on offer is aimed to stimulate the 
supply of high quality commercial premises on this strategic site by offering funding.  

2. Eligibility

Eligibility for this programme will be determined by the criteria outlined in the table below. 
Please note that these are guidelines only and eligibility will be looked at on a case-by-case 
basis.  

Eligible Uses Employment creating developments within the sectors as detailed 
above

Applicant  Developers
 Investors
 Owner Occupiers

Interest in land CCC will retain freehold - ground lease (long leasehold)

Eligible expenditure  Investigations 

Tudalen 15



4

 Premises construction costs
 Professional fees (deemed an eligible cost from the date of 

stage 1 approval and/or following written confirmation 
from Carmarthenshire County Council, whichever is the 
latest. Professional fees can be considered up to a 
maximum of 10% of the construction costs, providing the 
scheme goes ahead. In exceptional circumstances 
consideration may be given to fees in excess of this limit, on 
a case by case basis) Professional services must be 
procured as highlighted in Annex 3 to be considered 
eligible.

Developers Profit As a condition of funding awarded under this programme, a key 
element of the appraisal process involves an assessment of the 
“returns” or “profits” made by applicants. A reasonable level of 
developers profit is allowable within the development appraisal but 
this should be commensurate with prevailing market conditions 
and as such will be subject to a rigorous assessment as part of the 
due diligence process

A level of developers profit can be included in the development 
appraisal in order to calculate the viability gap and the grant 
intervention rate (up to the maximum state aid threshold). 
However, the developers profit cannot be claimed or paid out as an 
eligible expenditure.

Ineligible 
expenditure

 Process Plant
 Machinery 
 Finance charges
 Crane-age
 Polluter pays principle
 End tenant fit out costs

3. Funding Levels

The level of funding applied for should be established by a development appraisal, and 
should reflect the difference between the anticipated capital cost of the scheme and the 
anticipated completed market value of the premises.  An example of a typical development 
appraisal is attached in Annex 1. 

The level of funding offered can be affected by:-

 The minimum level which is considered necessary to achieve the project as per the 
development appraisal.

 The value of the project to CHSES based on the quality, number and type of jobs 
accommodated, the quality of the business premises, the area of floor-space made 
available, the number of SME’s to be supported & enterprises adopting or improving 
equality strategy & monitoring systems. (see Annex II for definitions)

 Permitted State Aid Levels as per the table in section 4:-

Tudalen 16



5

 The total amount of funding available is £1,000,000 and funding will be allocated on 
a competitive basis. 

 The maximum funding awarded for a project will be at the discretion of the 
authority; 

4. State Aid

For Offers of Grant Made After 1 July 2014
This funding has been deemed as a State Aid, which means that it is considered to be a 
public resource given selectively to undertakings engaged in economic activity that could 
potentially affect competition and trade between EU member states.  The threshold level 
refers to the total permitted public subsidy (i.e. including any other public sector funding or 
local authority support) towards the total project (i.e. including fit-out and process plant).

The grant scheme is run with state aid cover under  the Welsh Local Government Property 
Development Grant Scheme. State Aid reference SA.46422.

From the 1st of July 2014, levels of funding will be restricted to the following thresholds:-

Threshold Company Size
45% Small enterprise ie <50 employees, annual turnover which does not exceed 

10million euro.
35% Medium enterprise ie <250 employees, annual turnover which does not 

exceed 50m euro. 
25% Large enterprise - companies over 250 employees

5. Targeted Area

This programme specifically targets CHSES which is identified as one of the six key areas in 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s Transformations Strategy. The programme also tragets 
specific sectors. Exceptional Projects that fall outside of these sectors may be considered on 
a case by case basis. If your project falls outside of the sectors listed you should contact the 
Project Officer for further advice before proceeding with your application.

6. Process

In order to avoid unnecessary effort and expense by the applicant, the local authority 
operates a two-stage approval process:

Stage 1 – Initial 
Assessment

Approval in 
Principle

Provides initial indication of project eligibility, viability, 
level of funding available.

Stage 2 – Detailed 
Assessment

Authority to 
Commit

Defines actual funding offers and associated terms and 
conditions.

Each application will be dealt with on a case-by-case basis at the discretion of the local 
authority and its decision will be final. The funding can only be offered in those cases where 
the local authority is satisfied that without such aid the project would not proceed.

Tudalen 17



6

Funding is not given automatically.  The local authority reserves the right to establish 
priorities within the total budget available within the county, for example value for money, 
viability, outputs created, etc. and to impose such terms and conditions, as it considers 
appropriate.

Expenditure incurred by developers in developing and submitting Stage 1 applications, e.g. 
legal fees, architects, consultants, etc. will not be reimbursed by Carmarthenshire County 
Council. However, the agreed percentage (grant intervention rate) of eligible expenditure 
incurred by successful applicants following Stage 2 approval will be reimbursed at the claim 
stage. Professional fees however, are deemed eligible after the date of Stage 1 approval or 
following written confirmation from Carmarthenshire County Council. Authorisation will be 
given following submission of satisfactory quotes. These will also be reimbursed after 
practical completion.

7. Application Process

The application process is set out below:  

7.1 The Stage 1 application forms, sketch drawings, site location plan, company accounts 
and initial project appraisal must be submitted by 4pm on 28/02/2017. 

7.2 The decision making panel will then assess and consider all applications during the 
following month of March 2017 and will inform applicants at the end of the month as 
to whether or not they have been successful at stage 1. 

7.3 If successful the applicant will then be requested to submit a more detailed Stage 2 
application form no later than 31/07/17

7.4 The decision making panel and Council’s Executive Board will then assess and 
consider the individual stage 2 applications. The applicant will be advised of the 
decision.

7.5 Practical completion to be achieved no later than 30 September 2019.

8. Information Required

The applicant must supply the following information and must use suitably experienced 
professional advisors.  

Stage 1: Initial Assessment – Approval in Principle
 Completed application form
 Site location plan
 Proposed layout/master plan/photos
 Initial development appraisal (cost & value) – Example in Annex 1
 Company accounts (Last 3 years)
 Environmental policy / bilingual policy / equalities & diversity policy.  

Tudalen 18



7

 Copies of quotes / tenders for professional services (if required to be eligible after 
Stage 1 approval)

If the Local Authority is satisfied that the stage 1 requirements have been met and that the 
scheme is eligible, viable and is worthy of support a stage 2 application will then be invited.

Note – Costs incurred on professional services, e.g. architects, quantity surveyors, BREEAM 
assessors, etc. are deemed eligible after the date of Stage 1 approval and/or following 
written confirmation from Carmarthenshire County Council. Written agreement must be 
sought from Carmarthenshire County Council prior to the engagement of consultants. 
Authorisation will be given from Carmarthenshire County Council following submission of 
satisfactory quotes or tenders, whichever is applicable (refer to Annex 3)

To ensure that developers maximise their eligible costs, Carmarthenshire County Council 
recommend that professional services are procured as part of the Stage 1 application 
process or as soon after that date as possible. Developers can only claim against these costs 
if their Stage 2 application is approved and the scheme is delivered.

Stage 2: Detailed Assessment - Authority to Commit
 Completed application form
 Revised development appraisal
 Marketing plan 
 Cash flow forecast
 Full planning consent
 Detailed drawings and specification
 Copies of quotes / tenders for professional services (if not already submitted at Stage 

1 of the application)  *** (see note above)
 Copies of contractors tenders***
 Tender report 
 Valuation (to be undertaken by Carmarthenshire County Council)
 Proof of match funding
 Evidence of land/premises ownership (freehold/ lease of at least 15 years with 

landlords consent, in the form of title deeds, land registry document or lease 
agreement). Please note that a legal charge (with the land registry) on the property 
will need to be entered into if your project is successful.

 Copies of any pre let / pre sale agreements

*** Professional services and contractors must be procured by a process which is deemed 
satisfactory by the County Council (see Annex 3)

We reserve the right to request additional information.

If Carmarthenshire County Council is satisfied with the stage 2 requirements and is intending 
to support the scheme, at this stage an authority to commit will be sent to the applicant.  
This will need to be signed and returned to the Local Authority within 14 days.  After this has 
been done, the applicant can start work providing all of the consents are in place.  It must be 
noted that this will be at the applicant’s risk as the full terms and conditions will not have 
been finalised and signed at this stage.

Tudalen 19



8

No project should start or let its main contract until an “Authority to Commit” has been 
issued and accepted by the applicant. If a project should start or let its main contract 
before this action is completed it will be concluded that the project does not require 
funding assistance.

Please be advised that you must comply with The Health & Safety at Work Act and 
Construction, Design & Management Regulations.

9. Security / Clawback / Repayment

Carmarthenshire County Council will require a charge on the property to provide security for 
the following events (Dates relate to the “Date of the Practical Completion Certificate”):

Unauthorised change of Project Purpose within 5 years of 
final grant payment

Full Repayment

Fraud / Misleading Information Full Repayment
Breach of Conditions Full Repayment
Sale within 5 years Proportional – Clawback 

based on sale in excess of 
the valuation at grant 
approval 

Non achievement of targets / outputs Proportional Clawback

Clawback will be in proportion to the level of grant awarded on the sum over and above the 
value calculated for grant purposes and will be calculated on the increase in value of the 
premises.

The applicant will also be required to insure the premises for a period of 5 years at a level 
sufficient to ensure that it can be rebuilt in the event of an incident and list the County 
Council’s interest in the property on the policy.

10. Outputs

Please note that outputs will be considered during the assessment of your application and 
you will be expected to verify them on completion of the scheme and before payment is 
made.  We will be considering the following outputs:-
 

 Jobs accommodated and created
 Type of jobs accommodated (quality)
 Private sector investment 
 Floor space Created/improved
 SME’s accommodated
 Quality of business premises created (BREEAM)

Records must be kept for 10 years from the date of the last award of aid under the 
programme.  Records must be sufficiently detailed to establish that the conditions of the 
Welsh Local Government Capital Investment Aid & Employment Aid Scheme are met.

Tudalen 20



9

11. Payment

Payment is retrospective and may be made on an interim and final claim basis, or on 
practical completion, the basis of which are to be  agreed  on a ‘case by case’ basis and will 
be subject to the following documentation being submitted:-

 Claim form / outputs questionnaire with original signature
 Original valuation certificate
 Original practical completion certificate
 Original invoices
 Original bank statements showing proof of payments made
 Satisfactory site visit being undertaken by a quantity surveyor employed by the 

County Council
 Building regulations completion certificate

Carmarthenshire County Council will keep certified copies of the original documentation.

If the eligible works expenditure is lower than anticipated in the offer letter, the financial 
assistance will be reduced on a pro rata basis.

12. Additionality

Applicants must demonstrate that PDF financial support is necessary for the project to 
proceed and that developments would therefore not take place without funding. 
Specifically, applicants must demonstrate how funding support;

 will  lead to additional outcomes and clear links with these and the additional funding
 will  increase the capacity of the applicant to deliver its services
 will  increase the scale of the project
 will  improve the quality of the project
 will release resources to allow other projects to proceed.

13. Community Benefits – Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
To ensure that schemes supported by the Cross Hands SES Property Development Fund have 
a positive social, economic and environmental impact, the Partnership encourages each 
successful applicant to incorporate working practices which provide community benefits in 
and around each development scheme. We are committed to promoting Sustainable 
Development, ensuring our actions contribute to social, economic and environmental well-
being now and in the future. The aim is to build stronger communities, reduce social 
exclusion and poverty and encourage the development of the economy.

Successful applicants will be supported by the authority to, where possible, implement the 
inclusion of ‘Community Benefits’ which will bring long-term benefits to the residents and 
businesses to the wider communities. This can be done by: 

 Training and employment – e.g. consider the opportunities to recruit and train long 
term economically inactive persons, offer apprenticeships/ training opportunities for 

Tudalen 21



10

young people, consider the development of trade skills in your existing workforce 
etc.

 Supply Chain initiatives – e.g. supplier engagement, second tier supply chain 
opportunities etc.

 Working with 3rd Sector & supported factories & businesses where applicable.
 Community Initiatives – e.g. volunteering days, support for local youth groups and 

other community groups, Mini sporting tournaments etc
 Education Contribution – e.g. work/school placements, talks to children on career 

paths etc

The authority will also encourage applicants to obtain the co-operation of their sub-
contractors, so that they in turn contribute to the Community Benefits of the development 
scheme. 

This will be discussed with you in detail following Stage 1 approval.

14. Procurement

It is a requirement that all services and works are procured by an approved competitive 
tender procedure as detailed in Annex 3 – ‘Purchasing goods, services, consultancy, research 
or works’.  All applicants must adhere to this procedure.

15. Publicity Requirements

Appropriate publicity measures must be undertaken to raise the awareness of the sources of 
funding received.  If a project is successful in obtaining funding assistance under this 
programme, the terms & conditions will detail the publicity measures to be undertaken by 
the applicant. Please refer to Annex 4 - Publicity Requirements.

Details of any awards exceeding 500 Euros given under this scheme will be made publicly 
available via a State aid website within 2 years of the Welsh Local Government Capital 
Investment Aid & Employment Aid Scheme being implemented.

16. Design and Supervision

Grant recipients must employ appropriately qualified professionals (i.e Quantity Surveyor & 
Architect) to assess tenders, provide drawings, supervise project works and provide 
certificates for completed works. This cost may be included in the qualifying expenditure for 
grant assistance up to a limit of 10% of the total project cost provided that it has been 
accounted for in the application form and the County Council’s specific written agreement 
has been sought prior to the engagement of consultants and provided sufficient capital 
expenditure has been evidenced to support the agreed level of fees. The professional 
consultant must hold a qualification appropriate to the nature of the works proposed.
Professional fees are an eligible cost from the date of stage 1 approval and / or written 
approval from Carmarthenshire County Council for applications that obtain an authority to 
commit. 

17. Cross Cutting Themes

17.1 Welsh Language

Tudalen 22



11

Applicants will need to outline the ways in which the scheme encourages the 
development of the Welsh Language.  The building should have the provision of bilingual 
signage. The policy statement must be submitted at Stage 1.

18. Golden Rules

 Level of Funding at total discretion of the local authority;
 Don’t commit or announce the project before approval;
 If in doubt – ASK.

19. Contact Details:-

For further information or if you have any queries please contact Carmarthenshire County 
Council at:

Economic Development Division
Parc Amanwy
Ammanford

 SA18 3EP

 Tel: 01554 748809

CJones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 23



Annex 2
Example development appraisal
(An electronic excel copy of this spreadsheet is available upon request).
This is a flexible guide for your use. You don't have to provide a development appraisal in 
this format. You can leave blank fields and/ or you can add eligible cost lines.
You should insert your own cost rates based on professional advice. 
Only insert figures in the grey boxes as these will calculate automatically

Rates Item totals Sub-totals Totals Gap

Completed Value

1.1 Rental Income sq. ft. @ £ sq ft
0 sq. ft. @ £0.00 £0.00
0 sq. ft. @ £0.00 £0.00

1.2 Total Annual Rental Income £0.00 Per Annum

1.3 Initial yield rate (%) 9.0 11.11
Market Value £0.00

1.4 Completed Value £0.00

Development Costs

2.2 Construction
Site Preperation
Preliminaries
Building
Internal Plot roads
Landscaping
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION £0.00 £0.00

Professional Fees
Building Regs
Planning Fees
Structural Engineer
M & E
Architect Fees
CDM Compliance
QS Fees
BREEAM Assessor Fees
Other Professional Fees (specify)
Actual Total £0.00
TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES £0.00

Total before other costs £0.00
2.3 Other Costs

Developer's Profit £0.00
TOTAL OTHER COSTS £0.00

2.5 Development Cost £0.00
Development Profit / Loss £0.00

Market Value is calculated 
by multiplying the annual 
rental income by the 
Gross Rent Multiplier.

This is the Gross Rent 
Multiplier, calculated by 
dividing initial yield rate by 
100. Initial Yield rate varies 
according to location, 
market conditions or 
whether a pre-let 
agreement is in place. We 
recommend taking advice 
from a valuer to determine 
yield rate and rental rate.

Fees are reimbursed on the 
basis of actual costs 
incurred, up to a maximum 
of 10% of the total 
construction cost, (and 
excluding site acquisition 
costs).

Development cost minus market value = the 
development gap (or profit).

Sq ft is based on actual 
employment space created. 
Rental income per sq. ft. 
should take account of 
factors such as location, 
demand, and end-use.

Developer's profit is 
eligible for grant support. 
Typically, it will be set at 
10% of the overall 
development cost, 
though this may vary.

Tudalen 24



Annex 2

                                         

Cross Hands East Strategic Employment Site Development Fund

Annex 2

Output Definitions October 2016

JOBS ACCOMMODATED

Jobs accommodated definition: Number of jobs accommodated within the sites and 
premises. 

Accommodated: The maximum number of jobs potentially located at any one time.  This is 
not the number accommodated over the life of the premises.  If the project involves the 
refurbishment of a premises then this should be the number of additional jobs 
accommodated (i.e. any jobs accommodated prior to refurbishment should be deducted 
from the number reported to WG; should this result in a negative figure then the project 
should reconsider whether this is the most appropriate result indicator for them).

Evidence: Practical completion certificate and drawings showing the area of net floorspace 
that is available as employment space. The number of jobs accommodated on this 
floorspace will vary according to the type of end use of the building, and will be calculated 
according to the table below:

Use Type Sq. M. 
per job

Sq. Ft. per 
Job 

Industrial
General Industrial 34 365
Small Business 32 340
High Tech R &D (non-Science Park) 29 310
Science Park 32 340
Office
General Office 19 205
Serviced Business Centre (Managed Units) 20 215
Business Park 16 170
Call centre 12.8 140
Office

Category / Criteria breakdowns
Unitary Authority Carmarthenshire

Tudalen 25



Annex 2
FLOOR SPACE CREATED / IMPROVED

Floor space created or refurbished definition: The number of metres squared of building 
space created or refurbished for business and/or educational use. This does not include area 
used for car parking or external landscaping.

Created: putting up a new building.

Refurbished: refurbishing an existing building.

Evidence: Works – certificate of practical completion of the works. QS certification of works 
carried out, e.g. site services/utilities and infrastructure, foundations  laid, walls and roof 
built.

Category / Criteria breakdowns
Purpose of premises (Business – office, Business – manufacturing, Business – distribution)
Unitary Authority Carmarthenshire

SME’s ACCOMMODATED

SMEs accommodated Definition: Number of SMEs accommodated within the sites and 
premises referred to in the indicator “Premises created or refurbished.” 

Accommodated: The maximum number potentially located at any one time.  This is not the 
number accommodated over the life of the premises.  SMEs: “The category of micro, small 
and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) is  made up of enterprises which employ fewer than 
250 persons and which have  an annual turnover not exceeding EUR 50 million, and/or an 
annual balance  sheet total not exceeding EUR 43 million.” 

Evidence: Practical completion certificate and drawings showing the area of net floorspace 
that is available as employment space for SMEs. Building should be complete before 
reporting SMEs accommodated.

Category / Criteria breakdowns
Unitary Authority Carmarthenshire

PRIVATE SECTOR INVESTMENT

Private Sector Investment Definition: Measured in £, this is the gross amount of direct 
tangible or intangible investment from the private sector or: commercial, charitable and not-
for-profit organizations and private individuals. This figure represents the private sector 
contribution to the total cost of a project once any public sector and grant funding has been 
deducted.

Tudalen 26



Annex 3

                                         

Cross Hands East Strategic Employment Site Property Development Fund

Annex 3
Purchasing Goods, Services, Consultancy , Research or Works

When making a purchase or paying for a service, applicants should aim to get 
value for money whilst offering a range of businesses the opportunity to 
provide those goods or services in a fair and transparent manner. 

The applicant must therefore ensure that the following procurement 
procedures are adopted according to the estimated value (exc. of VAT) of the 
contract at quotation/pre-tender stage. Your decision must demonstrate best 
value and you must keep records which supports your decision. 

Failure to fully comply with the procurement thresholds will render the costs 
ineligible for assistance under this fund.

Third Party Grant Procurement |Rules

*Requirement
Total Value 
(excluding 

VAT)
Procurement Process

All up to £5,000 A minimum of 1 written Quotation must be 
obtained and retained.
Best value for money must be obtained and 
reasonable care must be taken to obtain goods, 
works or services of adequate quality at a 
competitive price. A documented record to 
support the decision must be retained for audit 
purposes.

All £5,000 and 
£24,999

A minimum of 3 quotations should be sought from 
competitive sources and confirmed in writing, by 
letter, fax or e-mail. A documented record of the 
evaluation and decision to award must be recorded. 
The quotes must be based on the same 
specification and evaluated on a like for like 
basis. 

All £25,000 and 
£74,999

A minimum of 3 written Quotations must be 
sought from competitive sources*. The quotes 
must be based on:

 the same specification, 
 the same evaluation criteria and 

evaluated on a     like for like basis. It is 
best practice to establish an evaluation 
panel.

 the same closing date.
A documented record of the quotes sought, the 
evaluation process and the decision to award 
must be recorded for audit purposes. 
All quotations above the value of £25,000 must be 

Tudalen 27



Annex  3

advertised on the Sell2wales website; 
(www.sell2wales.gov.wales) based on the same 
specification, evaluation criteria and closing date. 
CPU will place the advert, unless otherwise agreed. 
In exceptional circumstances this requirement may 
be waived following prior approval from the 
Procurement Manager and the relevant 
Department’s Head of Service.
** In the event that only one quotation is 
received, you must contact the Project Manager 
from Carmarthenshire County Council (CCC) to 
provide details and justification of the 
procurement process you have undertaken. The 
decision to proceed to purchase must be 
approved by CCC on a case by case basis. In 
circumstances where it is evident that more than 
one quotation could be sought, there may be a 
requirement to advertise via Sell2Wales.

Goods 
Services
& Works

Over £75,000 A minimum of 4 tenders must be sought from 
competitive sources*, with a minimum of 3 
tenders to be received**.
All those tendering must be provided with the 
same information: 

 the same specification of requirements, 
 an outline of the evaluation criteria 

against which the contract will be 
awarded and 

 the same closing date for receipt of 
tenders, after which no submissions will 
be accepted.

The evaluation process you follow must be 
consistent with the original evaluation criteria 
outlined and an evaluation report produced 
detailing on what basis the successful tender 
was awarded. It is best practice to establish an 
evaluation panel to evaluate tenders.

** In the event that only one tender is received, 
you must contact the Project Manager from 
Carmarthenshire County Council (CCC) to 
provide details and justification of the 
procurement process you have undertaken. The 
decision to proceed to purchase must be 
approved by CCC on a case by case basis. In 
circumstances where it is evident that more than 
one tender could be sought, there may be a 
requirement to advertise via Sell2Wales.

For contracts in excess of £250k in value: 

In selecting contractors for the tender list it is 
recommended that the appropriate due diligence 
and financial checks are undertaken on those 

Tudalen 28



Annex  3

parties;
As a minimum, due diligence and financial 
checks must be undertaken on the preferred 
contractor following the evaluation and prior to 
contract award.

Goods and 
Services

Above 
£164,176

If a contract for Goods or Services is likely to 
exceed £164,176 the applicant must inform 
the project manager to determine whether the 
contract will be subject to EU Public Contract 
Directive.

Works Above 
£4,104,394

If a contract for Works is likely to exceed 
£4,104,394 the applicant must inform the 
project manager to determine whether the 
contract will be subject to EU Public Contract 
Directive.

Important Guidance

Advertising via Sell2Wales
* It is possible for you to advertise on the National Procurement website, 
www.Sell2Wales.co.uk if you are in a situation where you have difficulty in identifying 
the minimum number of suppliers required and/or would like to vary or attract new 
suppliers to quote or tender. Advertising via Sell2Wales is considered to be best 
practice, however you may feel that you are better able to identify potential suppliers 
who could provide the best overall offer. 
This facility is available to you free of charge, please visit the Sell2Wales website 
http://www.sell2wales.gov.uk/ and contact the website helpline on 0800 222 9004 for 
further information. 
Seeking Quotations/Tenders
For spend above £5,000 it is essential that the quotes/tenders are sought from 
appropriate suppliers for the goods, works or services required. In circumstances 
where it is evident that unsuitable quotes/tenders have been sought, there may be a 
requirement to advertise via Sell2Wales.
Other Funders
If a project involves any other or additional funding streams, these Third Party Grant 
Procurement Rules must be followed as a minimum for the total estimated spend of 
the requirement.
Avoiding conflicts of interest 
We recognise that it is possible that applicants / developers or persons connected 
with them (such as relatives, business partners or friends) may wish to tender for a 
contract being offered by the applicant / developer. This is acceptable, but applicants 
will need to ensure that the tendering process is undertaken in an open, transparent 
and fair manner, as outlined above, which does not give one person or company 
tendering any advantage over another, which arises from the process. Appropriate 
measures to prevent identify and remedy any conflicts of interest must be carried out.
If an applicant / developer or any person connected with them directly or indirectly, 
has a financial, economic, political or other personal interest which might be 
perceived to compromise their impartiality and independence in the context of the 
procurement procedure: 

 that applicant / developer, or any other person or party with an interest must 
declare that interest in writing to the Project officer who will offer advice 
accordingly.

 specifications and evaluation criteria must not be biased or tailored to favour 
one solution or any one party over another.

Tudalen 29

http://www.sell2wales.gov.uk/


Annex  3

 that person or party with an interest should take no part whatsoever in any of 
the tender evaluation procedures to ensure that the process is fair to all. It is 
acknowledged that the grant applicant may be required to provide the final 
approval

 every stage of the procedure must be recorded formally.
 If the contract would normally be subject to a single tender procedure, it is 

recommended that the sponsor should seek written quotes from at least two 
other suppliers (ie following the procedure set out above for contracts 
between £5000 and £25,000)

The purpose of these guidelines is to ensure that there is fairness in the spending of 
public money and that the integrity of the applicant is not compromised.

Changes to the specification or contract
If any changes are required to the specification after seeking quotes/tenders which 
affects the original scope of the requirement, a new procurement exercise may need 
to be undertaken to ensure that best value for money has been achieved. This may 
occur where there are unforeseen additions to the original requirement, where 
tenders are received in excess of the available budget, where funding levels change 
etc. The grant applicant must inform the Project officer who will offer advice 
accordingly.

N.B.
 Failure to observe the relevant procedures outlined above will be 

considered non-compliant and may lead to a withdrawal of the grant offer 
and potential claw-back of funding.

 In cases where you are unable to satisfy the requirements of these 
procedures you must always inform the project manager.

 If you have any queries as to how these procedures should be applied, 
you should contact the project manager for clarification and further 
guidance.

Do’s and Don’ts of Tendering

Do’s Don’ts
 ensure that any potential conflicts of 

interest are declared at the earliest 
opportunity.

 Don’t skew the specification to 
eliminate or to discriminate against 
suppliers i.e. limit the specification to 
a specific brand. 

 comply with the appropriate rules  Don’t change the scope of the 
specification once distributed.

 ensure that the specification is 
precise and not in excess of the 
requirements.

 Don’t change the evaluation criteria 
during the process.

 ensure that the Evaluation Criteria is 
directly relevant to the subject of the 
contract

 Don’t give companies too short 
notice to quote.

 complete and retain full records for 
future reference and audit purposes

 Don’t enter into too much detail 
verbally with suppliers regarding 

Tudalen 30



Annex  3

specific questions. The same 
information must be provided to all 
suppliers to ensure the process is fair 

 ensure that quotes/tenders are 
evaluated on a ‘like for like’ basis.

 Don’t reveal prices to potential 
suppliers.

 ensure that you treat suppliers in an 
open, transparent and non-
discriminatory manner.

 Don’t breach confidentiality.

 allow sufficient time for companies to 
quote

 Don’t open quotes/tenders in 
advance of the deadline.

 ensure the value of the Goods/Works 
or Service is estimated accurately at 
the start of the process to apply the 
correct procurement process. The 
aggregated value must be used 
where applicable.

 Don’t consider submissions received 
after the deadline.

Procurement Definitions
Title Description

Aggregation Adding together the value of separate contracts for the same 
supply, service or works.

Contract A Contract for the purposes of these Rules shall be any agreement 
(whether or not in writing) between the grant applicant and one or 
more other parties for:-

 the sale of goods or materials;
 the supply of goods or materials;
 the execution of works
 the provision of services (including  accommodation and 

facilities).
Competitive 
Source

an independent provider bidding against another independent 
provider

Goods are material items i.e. equipment, food, vehicles etc
EU Public 
Procurement 
Directives

are rules and regulations that Public Sector organisations must 
adhere to when procuring Goods, Works and Services over a 
certain value threshold (£164,176 for Goods and Services and 
£4,104,394 for Works contracts) - whereby an official Tender 
Exercise in accordance with the European Public Procurement 
Directives should be undertaken. These change every 2 years and 
are due to change on 1st January 2018.

Evaluation a method of determining which offer provides the best value for 
money in accordance with the pre-determined evaluation criteria

Evaluation 
Criteria

A list of key requirements taken from the specification that will 
enable suppliers to explain how they intend to deliver the 
requirement which will be evaluated. The criteria by which the 
most economically advantageous tender will be determined is 
based on a combination of price/cost and quality criteria.

Evaluation 
Panel

It is best practice to establish an evaluation panel to undertake the 
evaluation exercise. It may be appropriate to have a cross 
functional team as a panel. Panel should agree specification and 
evaluation criteria. Panel should be consistent throughout each 
stage of procurement exercise

OJEU (Official is a publication in which all public sector contracts valued over a 

Tudalen 31



Annex  3

Journal of the 
European 
Union)

certain monetary threshold (currently £164,176 for Goods and 
Services and £4,104,394 for Works contracts) must be published

Sell2Wales is a National Procurement Website where all public sector 
contracts are advertised. Third Party Grant Recipients can also 
advertise via the website free of charge, please visit the 
Sell2Wales website http://www.sell2wales.gov.uk/ and contact the 
website helpline on 0800 222 9004 for further information.

Services tasks undertaken by people i.e. consultancy services, translation 
services etc

Specification this is a written statement that defines the requirements. The 
specification will vary according to the work, product or service 
concerned. For a simple product the specification may be a brief 
description, while in the case of a complex requirement it will be a 
comprehensive document. The description of the goods, works or 
services required must not refer to a specific make, brand or 
source.

Tender/Quote is the document compiled by a potential supplier in response to an 
invitation to quote/tender. It sets out general information 
demonstrating the capability and eligibility of the supplier - 
including detailed information about how they propose to fulfil the 
specifications of the requirement.

Works include landscaping, construction, building works etc

If you have any queries as to how these procedures should be applied, you should contact 
the PDF officer for clarification and further guidance.

Tudalen 32

http://www.sell2wales.gov.uk/


Annex 4

                                         

Cross Hands East Strategic Employment Site Property Development Fund

Annex 4

Publicity Requirements

If funding is awarded towards a given project the developer / applicant must ensure 
that recognition is given to all the bodies listed below:-

 Carmarthenshire County Council

The Guidance sets out how developers / applicants can meet their publicity 
requirements at each appropriate opportunity (e.g. use of logos on stationery, 
leaflets, websites etc) and who you should contact for further information and advice, 
and where relevant, approval (e.g. logo size).

Carmarthenshire County Council will provide funding sign boards for the construction 
period of the scheme and plaques for displaying on completion.

Carmarthenshire County Council will reserve the right to undertake press releases at 
specific mile stones of a project, for example at approval & commencement of the 
scheme and on completion.

Details of any awards exceeding £500,000 Euros given under this scheme will be 
made publicly available via a State aid website within 2 years of this scheme being 
implemented.

Applicants are advised to contact Officers for further guidance.

Tudalen 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
19/12/2016

Yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol: Y Portffolio:
Y Cynghorydd Meryl Gravell Adfywio a Hamdden

CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R GRONFA GRANT GANLYNOL: CRONFA CYLLID A 
DARGEDIR

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:
Cronfa Cyllid a Dargedir - Atodiad 1
1 Cais - Cyfanswm gwerth - £20,000.00
Cyfanswm y ceisiadau = 1       Cyfanswm eu gwerth = £20,000.00
Y RHESYMAU: 
Datblygu Cymunedau Cynaliadwy yn Sir Gaerfyrddin
Ymgynghorwyd â’r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol  NADDO     
Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad   OES
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad  NAC OES     

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Helen L Morgan

Awdur yr Adroddiad:
Janine Bowen

Swyddi:
Rheolwr Datblygu Adfywio a 
Pholisi
Cynorthwy-ydd Adfywio 
Cymunedol

Ffôn -  01267 242367
HLMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Ffôn – 01267 242436
NJBowen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): None

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): N/A

DECISION MADE:

Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______
                                                                   EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER 

Tudalen 35

Eitem Rhif  4



The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance 
at the meeting

Recommendation of Officer 
adopted

YES / NO

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified:

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted:

Tudalen 36



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER REGENERATION AND LEISURE

19th December 2016
Financial Assistance from the following grant fund:  Targeted Finance 

Fund

To approve the following
RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:
Targeted Finance Fund – Annex 1
1 Application – Total Value = £20,000.00
Total Number of Applications - 1          Total Value = £20,000.00

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :
Signed:    Helen L Morgan                                                               Economic Development Manager
Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Organisational 
Development 

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE  NONE YES

CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below
Signed: Helen L Morgan                                                                              Economic Development Manager

1.Local Member(s)  As per individual reports
2.Community / Town Council   As per individual reports
3.Relevant Partners   As per individual reports
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  As per individual reports 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

Targeted Finance Fund TFF-16-05 Community Bureau, Grants Section, Business 
Resource Centre, Parc Amanwy, New Road, 
Ammanford.  Carmarthenshire. SA18 3EP

The applicant acquired the venue via a CCC Asset Transfer.  They have signed a 99 year lease 
which commenced in November 2015.

Tudalen 37



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Annex
Regeneration & Leisure Executive Board Report

Targeted Finance Fund 2016 - 2017
Report Author: Janine Bowen

NJBowen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01267 242436

Balance Available: £62,941.00

Report Value - £20,000.00

1 of 1

Application Reference:  TFF/16/05

Targeted Finance Fund 2016/17
Application Reference:  TFF/16/05

Project Title Calon y Fferi
Applicant Ferryside Social Enterprise Community Centre

Ward St. Ishmael
Key Account 
Management

The Targeted Finance Fund is a discretionary fund available to Key Account 
Management (KAM) clients.  For an organisation to become a KAM client 
they must be a third sector not for profit organisation that falls into one of the 
following 3 categories:

 Existing social enterprises that have the potential to grow, be 
sustainable and create employment.

 Emerging projects that have the potential to create jobs. √
 Third sector organisations that that deliver vital services within our 

communities.
Project 

Description
Ferryside is a thriving village which sits on the Towy estuary in the St 
Ishmael’s ward. (Total ward population 2635, ONS mid-year 2014). It has 
good road and rail links being on the direct line between Manchester and 
Pembrokeshire and regular connections to/from Cardiff which is the link to 
West of England and London, making it easily accessible and a convenient 
stop off for hikers and cyclists visiting and exploring the area.

It boasts many local businesses such as the village shop, cafe, pub, hotel 
and local camp sites.  

Ferryside Social Enterprise Group (FSEG) acquired the venue via asset 
transfer from Carmarthenshire County Council in November 2015 and have a 
99 year lease on the premises.

The venue is the former CCC Community Education Centre and following on 
from the findings of a Feasibility Study funded by RDP Access to Services in 
2010 (BP1), the FSEG wish to upgrade the building and will ensure that the 
existing services including the Doctor’s remains in situ.  Funding is sought in 
order to accommodate the following:

 Repositioning of the current entrance which is currently not 
favourable with CCC Planning Dept.  

 An upgraded foyer and reception area.

Tudalen 39



 Accommodate a computer suite with high speed broadband (for 
individual, business and training purposes).

 Accommodate a training room for hire and to facilitate information 
dissemination such as fuel clubs, debt advice and a credit union. 

 Fourteen rooms will be refurbished to provide office and workshop 
spaces for 9 new and 5 existing businesses including social 
enterprises and the medical centre. 

The above elements fall in to phase one of a 3 phase project and an 
application for £128k/80% is currently at stage 2 of the Welsh Government 
Rural Community Development Fund. 

This application will be used as match funding, and the TFF award will be 
used specifically to re-site a new entrance.

The existing entrance has been declared unsafe and unacceptable by the 
Planning Department and re-siting has therefore been included and 
approved on planning application numbers W/29567 and W/34471.

Repositioning, as well as complying with planning approval will afford much 
bigger usage when the refurbishment is completed.  It will create a simple but 
attractive entrance which will be bordered by the market green, with picnic 
tables, raised beds and wild flowers and the old RAF huts which houses a 
ceramics studio and the social enterprise Broadside films.

Whilst the (physical) project development is happening, it will provide a safe 
entrance/exit for trade vehicles, clients and customers. Without appropriate 
access the larger development will be hindered.

The new entrance and signage will make it easier and safer for visitors as 
well as locals to locate and access the services and businesses.

Economic Benefit (Targeted Finance Fund)
 Number of individuals into training/education – 23+
 Number of individuals into volunteering – 20
 Number of individuals into employment – 
 Number of community groups/organisations assisted - 
 Number of social enterprises created - 11
 Number of social enterprises supported – 2
 Number of jobs created - 14
 Number of jobs safeguarded – 8
 Public and private leverage funding – £140k

(Project whole)
Indicators and Outcomes RCDF TFF FSEG

Total Investment £160k  Leverage £128k £20k £12k
Number of action/operations supported 1
Population benefitting from improved 
services/infrastructure 1500
Premises created or refurbished 264m2

Tudalen 40



(continued)

Indicators and Outcomes RCDF TFF FSEG
Enterprises financially supported 1
Number of individuals in to training/education 23+
Number of individuals into volunteering 20
Number of social enterprises created 11
Number of social enterprises supported 2 (1)
Number of jobs created 14
Number of jobs safeguarded 8

Total Project Cost

Eligible Capital

Eligible  Revenue

Ineligible Costs

Amount and % of 
grant requested
Match funding

£160,000.00 - gross

£160,000.00

Nil

Nil

£20,000.00 @ 12.5%

£128,000 (Stage 2 Application to RCDF, WG awaiting confirmation of M/F by 
07/01/17)

£12,000 own funds (secured)
Cllr and Officer 
Consultations 

Undertaken

Letters of Support have been received from the following:

 Cllr. Mair Stephens, Local Elected Member
 Jonathan Edwards, MP Carmarthen East and Dinefwr
 St Ishmael’s Community Council
 Angie Darlington, Director, West Wales Action for Mental Health
 Tom Gripper, Broadside Films
 Steve Hale, Development and Support Manager, Logicalis UK Ltd
 Robert Gunstone, Chair, Ferryside Men’s Sheds
 Rob Bamford, Editor of STISH community magazine.
 Lynne and Kieron Ramsay, closest neighbours
 Stephen Griffiths, proprietor, Village Stores

Consultations: 
Rosie Carmichael CCC Biodiversity Officer:
As well as devising a plan to encourage the continuation of a wildlife corridor 
she requested that they join in with a biological recording mapping exercise 
to build on the work they have already done. This will involve recruiting 
members of the public to get involved, contributing to their biodiversity and 
social inclusion. (NB – the wildlife/eco garden is managed by the Ferryside 
Forum on behalf of FSEG).

Gary Glenister CCC Planning Officer:
Repositioning of entrance, please refer to project description above.

Tudalen 41



Rian Furlong CCC Grants Support Officer:
Rian has been supporting FSEG towards their application to WG for RCDF 
funding for 80% of the total project costs, currently at Stage 2.

Evidence of Need /
Community 
Engagement

The Feasibility Study of 2010 (Trilein Report funded through RDP), carried 
out an in depth consultation with the community which demonstrated a high 
level of community support.  Since then, there have been a series of open 
days and meetings to continue to engage with the public and demonstrate 
the many benefits of the developing the project.

There are some occupants already on site, these include the Medical Centre, 
Broadside Films (a social enterprise made up of young media graduates), a 
chocolateer, an established local artist who runs art and pottery classes as 
well as workshops for people with mental health issues.

They have a waiting list of people wanting to rent the newly renovated rooms 
(such as a chiropractor and a beauty therapist), without having advertised the 
availability as yet.

Ferryside Men’s Sheds charity rent a large former RAF hut and this group is 
continuing to attract new members.  Recently, as a direct result of the 
development of the centre, a new women’s group has been established 
(Crafty Women), who are renting a former outside classroom and this has 
attracted some members who were in danger of becoming socially excluded.

The raised flower beds are rented individually by local people with limited 
mobility and is proving a substantial benefit to their health and wellbeing and 
there is a need for additional beds. In addition, local growers have asked if 
they can rent small plots.

They are negotiating with two local businesses towards leasing the bunk 
house and restaurant areas.

The Saturday market and cafe is very successful and popular with both 
locals and visitors, and as it attracts visitors it increases the footfall for the 
local businesses in the area.
The ‘Ask me about the Project’ table at the market has drawn in a lot of 
interest and support (list of supporters and comments held in project file), a 
Trustee has been on hand to show people around the premises and answer 
any questions. This has generated greater community involvement and 
support for the whole project.

Contributing to 
key Strategies

The project addresses key themes in the following strategies:

Carmarthenshire Local Development Strategy:
 Strategic aim 1: To support business growth, retention & 

specialisation
 Strategic aim 2: to support a skilled and ambitious workforce
 Strategic aim 3: to seek to maximise job creation and employment 

prospects
 Strategic aim 4: to support the development of a knowledge economy 
 Strategic aim 5: to develop the distinctiveness and attractiveness of 

the area in terms of tourism and business investment whilst ensuring 

Tudalen 42



that Wales as a nation is resilient

Carmarthenshire County Council’s Integrated Community Strategy 2011 
– 2016:

 People in Carmarthenshire are healthier.
 People who live, work and visit Carmarthenshire are safe and feel 

safer.
 Carmarthenshire’s communities and environment are sustainable.
 Carmarthenshire has a strong and prosperous economy.

Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration:
 Strategic aim 1:Business Growth, Retention and Specialism
 Strategic aim 3: Maximising job creation for all.

Welsh Government Digital Inclusion (2015): Delivering Digital Inclusion 
– A Strategic Framework:

 Help businesses make smart use of information technology and data
 Ensure citizens benefit from the digital age
 Underpin economic growth

The high level objective of the Welsh Government Rural Communities Rural 
Development Programme 2014 – 2020 to increase the GDP will also be met 
by the creation of job opportunities in the rural economy.

Ownership/Lease Secured 99 year lease from Carmarthenshire County Council commenced 
November 2015.

Business 
Plan/Officer 
Comments 

including details of 
support moving 

forward/next steps 
linked to growth 

and sustainability

FESG has a realistic and comprehensive Business Plan.

The whole project has been broken down into 3 phases, the 2nd and 3rd of 
which won’t be implemented until completion and evaluation of the previous. 
(This and the RCDF application will facilitate phase 1).

As part of KAM function the FSEG will receive regular support from the CB 
Officer to assist and ensure outputs per application and targets per strategies 
are achieved and the project maintains its sustainability.

Recommendation Award - £20,000.00

Subject to:

Tudalen 43



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 45

Eitem Rhif  6
Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 49

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 55

Eitem Rhif  7
Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 59

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	2 CYMERADWYO A LLOFNODI HYSBYSIAD PENDERFYNIAD Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR YR 11EG TACHWEDD 2016.
	3 CRONFA DATBLYGU EIDDO SAFLE CYFLOGAETH STRATEGOL DWYRAIN CROSS HANDS.
	Adroddiad

	4 CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R GRONFA GRANT GANLYNOL: CRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR.
	Adroddiad

	6 CRONFA MENTRAU GWLEDIG SIR GAERFYRDDIN- DEINTYDDFA EMLYN.
	Adroddiad

	7 CRONFA MENTRAU GWLEDIG SIR GAERFYRDDIN- TE GER Y MÔR.
	Adroddiad


